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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  ...and call the Senate Committee on Governmental Organization to order.  I do want to thank everyone for being here.  Today’s topic is Heat Emergencies: A Review of Heat Illness and Prevention Regulations Implemented In 2006.  This is a, to give you a synopsis of the hearing today, it will not be a long hearing.  We are, in essence, checking in to see how well we’re doing on two important items.  One is the implementation of heat regulations that were negotiated with the Governor couple summers ago, and to see if it’s actually working out there in terms of its implementation.

The other aspect of the hearing is to talk about the AP report that mentioned that we needed to have better statistics in terms of what we’re reporting in terms of deaths and we want to hear from the administration what we’re doing to rectify that.  And that will be the hearing.  So I do know there are some time constraints.  I’d like to rearrange the agenda a bit.  If I could, I’d like to ask the United Farm Workers and Esperanza Ross and anyone else in that category at this hearing to come up and give us your impressions at this point in time.  Then I’d like to turn to Len Walsh and Steffie Watkins, both who are here to answer questions and give us a bit on what we’re doing to rectify those.  And then we’re going to move onto Panel II which are the Western Growers and Rural Legal Assistance Foundation.  And then from that point, we will then turn back over to the second topic which is the heat statistics.  And then we’ll call it a day.  Okay?  With that, Ms. Ross, thanks for joining us.

MS. ESPERANZA ROSS:  Yeah.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  We appreciate it.  And we’ll take your time.  That doesn’t necessarily mean that we’re in a hurry and that you have to hurry, because, obviously, at the end of the day, you’re one of the major reasons we’re here, because we pass these regulations to make sure, ultimately, that they are implemented in a way that are, it’s helpful and we’d like to know those that aren’t working, maybe some suggestions, as well, what we can do to make them better.  And we do very much appreciate you coming all the way to Sacramento to testify.  With that, why don’t we ____.
MS. ROSS:  Esperanza Ross on behalf of the United Farm Workers.  I will provide a brief testimony and then I will introduce everyone else.  Again, the United Farm Workers acknowledges what the Governor has done that the previous three governors had failed to do.  And that was to enact heat regulations protecting farm workers and others who work outside.  Governor Schwarzenegger signed heat regulations after five farm workers died in the summer of 2005 when temperatures were reaching above 100 degrees.  Senator Florez, you, along with former Assemblymember Judy Chu, played an important role in those negotiations with the Governor in getting those regulations passed.
Since the heat regulations have been in effect, we have been working to ensure their enforcement.  I am here today because the UFW is deeply concerned that few agricultural employers are actually following the regulations.  Arturo Rodriguez, president of the UFW, sent a letter to the Governor asking him and his administration to engage personally in these efforts.  The letter also outlines our efforts.  I have provided copies.

In response to the letter, the administration has been very cooperative in working with us, and they continue to demonstrate a commitment.  Secretary Bradshaw has sent a letter to over 110,000 ag employers, construction, other employers about their workers.  Undersecretary Hoffman has initiated weekly calls.  Department of Labor along with the administration have adopted action plans and regular check in systems.  And we’re currently working with CalOSHA on some Spanish version of those regulations.  
However, we regretfully report that since Governor Schwarzenegger has signed the heat regulations, three more farm workers have died in the heat.  And we have asked for a fourth case to be investigated.  We believe farm workers are dying because the laws on the books are not the laws in the fields.  With over 80,000 farms and over 400,000 farm workers in the state, there is just not enough money this state could provide to ensure timely and near acceptable levels of enforcement.  This is why we believe SB 180, supported by a majority of Senators and Assemblymembers, is necessary.  It would allow farm workers to collectively protect themselves from preventable deaths from the heat as well as enforce other laws on the books.  
Again, the letter I have provided provides, shows how that works.  Today we, but before, but more important than my testimony is that the farm workers, is the testimony of the farm workers, themselves.  They live with the consequences daily of those laws that are not being enforced.  Here today we have farm workers from non-union properties and a UFW organizer who will testify on their experiences.  I’d like to first introduce Manuel Nuñez, who will be followed by Pablo Avilas, Patricia Nuñez, and we have Maria Florez who will translate.  And Ramon Santiago who is witnessing.

MR. MANUEL NUÑEZ:  Buenos dias.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Buenos dias.

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator) Good morning, my name is Manuel Nuñez.  I’ve been working for the agricultural business for 19 years now.  I have a lot of experience working with agricultural business and it’s been a lot of ups and downs.  I work for PVC Company.  Right now at PVC Company, the law that enforces, you know, the companies to have the little shelf, no, what it is called?  The shelter, yes.  The shelter.  And right now they don’t have that shelter at that company or any other company that he’s actually, you know, talked to one of his other workers, other coworkers.  He asks the foreman why don’t they have the actual shelter.  He says you’ve never needed it before, so why now?

Okay, last year there is a young girl, a young woman that had gallstones in her kidneys.  The heat is very hot and sometimes it goes up to 108, so that can cause, you know—well, he says that the heat is, it’s too hot, and also they deal with dirty bathrooms.  He says outside, you know, in the heat it’s like 108, and inside the bathrooms it’s like 150.  He’s making it a little bit more, but it’s like 150.  So it’s a little bit hotter inside those bathrooms.  
The law is a really good law, but the foreman and the actual ranchers, they laugh at the law.  At the company, Jimara, the actual owner would give them, they called it a little school where they have them, and it’s about two hours and they’re straight in the heat.  There was a really young girl.  She was about 24.  She was right next to Manuel and they were in their little school, so what happened was that it was like two hours long, so she actually fainted right in front of everybody.  He thought they were going to call the ambulance right there and there.  And the actual owner just ran into his truck, act like he was talking on the phone and he left.  Around four days after, then he came back to ask the foreman how was the young girl that actually fainted, if she was okay.  So after he asked about the young girl, he said, okay, if she’s here go ahead and let her go.  I don’t want any problems.  
The only thing they’re worried about is having like an umbrella on top of the actual jug of the water, not providing it for the farm workers, but they’re providing it for the water.  It’s on top of the jug.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who’s worried about that?

TRANSLATOR:  Huh?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You said the only thing they are worried about.

TRANSLATOR:  Well, the actual foreman or the owner.  They’re worried about putting the actual, the umbrella, yes.  And that’s where they set it at.  They don’t do the actual...

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s not big enough, in other words.  It’s very small.  

TRANSLATOR:  Very small.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  They put it on the water.

TRANSLATOR:  Yes.  And they think that’s the actual thing that they’re supposed to—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Shade.

TRANSLATOR:  The shade.

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator)  He thinks the way to actually penalize these, you know, these people is to actually fine them, you know, for them to actually, you know, hit them where it hurts.  Their pocketbooks.  He thinks it would be a good idea to investigate, you know, with, you know, your people to actually go and see what, you know, with your own eyes, how, you know, how things are being run.  And that is it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  Thank you very much.  

MR. PABLO AVALOS:  (via translator)  My name is Pablo Avalos.  Good morning.  He’s worked in the agriculture business for about 12 years, and his wife actually had insolation (sun stroke) last year.  She actually got really sick, so she talked to the foreman.  He laughed at her and he said she brought it from home.  So what happened was she went home very sick and the brother got really worried, so he took her to a hospital.  So after that, they actually took her to a doctor, well, a hospital and Jimada paid for it, so they said she was fine.  She was willing and able to go back to work the next day.  She actually went back three times to the hospital.  And after that, she went back to her own doctor to get a different diagnosis.  So, she said that her doctor gave her disability for almost a year.  He says that she also got a little bit of depression and she’s going back to work, but she still feels sick.  That’s all.  Thank you.  

MS. PATRICIA NUÑEZ:  Good morning.  My name is Patricia Nuñez.  I also worked in the fields with just like my friends here, now she works as an organizer for the farm workers.  I would like to share with you something that I saw about a month ago.  We were waiting there because we take access in the morning.  So we were waiting there for us to, you know, get our little group going.  And we saw four foremen drive up to a regular faucet and fill up their water jugs.  These were foremens (sic) from Anthony’s Vineyards and Sunworld.  And they were taking this water to the workers.  
The next day we go back to the same companies and we talk to the workers and they tell us that they’re scared to tell the foreman that their water is not good.  So, before we left, because we only have a half an hour to take access, she had one of the workers come up to her, whisper to her that the water was really, being really bad.  He said that the water was really bad and he thought we should do something about it, you know, that we should make some kind of an investigation to see if that water was, you know, good for human consumption.  In a different way, she has a friend that works in a different company and it has to do with the insulation.  He got really sick, so he told the actual formlady (sic), because it was a lady, and he sent her, I mean she sent him to a field to go and take a rest instead of having—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt for a moment.  I just want to make sure, on one of the terms you used, “insulation”, are you talking about enclosed shade when you say insulation?

TRANSLATOR:  NO, the, that little, what is it called, the shade that we’re supposed to have. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right, so you’re talking about the actual shade.

TRANSLATOR:  The actual shade that we're supposed to have.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Shade that doesn’t have any sort of light coming through it, correct, like a tree?  So in other words, the shade, because we negotiated this, remember?  Negotiating the, shade is such that no light’s going through it.  

TRANSLATOR:  Exactly, yes.

MS. NUÑEZ:  Earlier, well, after that, there was another lady that felt sick, so they took her, somebody carried her to the actual, the other field where he was supposed to be sitting, and all they gave her was a soda.  And go and have a seat.  They were there about two hours and their time wasn’t paid.  And that’s her testimony.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

MS. ROSS:  Senator, I’d just like to conclude.  I know you have been out in the fields when you had, you held a meeting in the heat, meeting in the sun a couple years ago.  But, I would like to extend on behalf of the United Farm Workers this committee, any member in this committee, as well as anybody in this room, to the fields at any point in time to drive simply down some of these roads to actually see for themselves and witness for themselves that there is not tarp, there is no shade, the water is not there.  And it’s pretty visible from the road, so we would like to invite anybody to actually come and see that.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  And we’ll definitely take you up on that.  And I do have some questions.  

MS. ROSS:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, and I’ll address them to, if I could, the interpreter and Ms. Ross, either/or can work out the questions.
Let me start with a simple question.  On the Department’s website, it talks about tailgate training for workers.  And so I guess the threshold question is have you received any of that training in the field via tailgate? 

TRANSLATOR:  No, there isn’t.  They don’t have any training on the heat.  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Workers.

MS. ROSS:  You might just ask, since you’re translating.  Why don’t you ask.

TRANSLATOR:  Oh, okay.

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator) No.  They have not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the other question I have is, have they seen any inspectors in the field to check in whether or not any of the conditions, shade, water, is provided, rest periods, particularly.

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator)  So, he says that they call—so he says the one that’s in charge of cleaning the bathrooms, they call the company, the company cleans them up so when they show up, the bathrooms are clean.  So that’s basically what—so when they think they’re going to show up, they have, you know, perfume and they’re nice and smelly and stuff, but when they leave, they’re back to their old ways.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:   A couple more questions.  Is there a number that any of the workers have to report immediate non-compliance of heat regs?  So an 800-number that would be in Spanish, for example, for farm workers. 

TRANSLATOR:  They have the numbers—

MS. ROSS:  Why don’t you translate.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  If there is a number, how do you, are you aware of the numbers and do workers use them?

MS. ROSS:  Just ask them.

TRANSLATOR:  Okay, then.
MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator) There is a number, but they say they call and nobody answers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And—

MS. ROSS:  Is there a machine, voicemail?

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator)  Oh, they do leave a message, but they never get a call back.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  More questions, if I could.  I’m sorry.  What kind of shade did you imagine when the, when you heard about these heat regs being implemented?  What kind of shade did you imagine would be provided?  You mentioned umbrellas, you mentioned makeshift insulation as you call it, or larger shade areas.  I mean, what’s the ideal shade from workers’ perspective under the heat regs.  Is it a large swath?  Is it small?  What did you imagine?  What works out there?  Sorry, it’s a long question.

MS. ROSS:  Just ask.

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator)  A large tarp.  And when I talk about the umbrella, that’s what the actual foreman put on top of the water to keep the water cool, not to keep the farm workers cool.  It’s a different, they took a different form or the actual law to protect the water, you know, to cool the water but not the workers.  They don’t have a tarp for the workers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do the workers, any of you bring your own umbrellas to the fields?  And are you allowed to bring your own umbrellas to the fields?

MR. NUÑEZ:  (via translator)  He says that sometimes you have to take your own or either buy your own, because they don’t provide.  So he’s actually bought his own actual umbrella, because he asked for the umbrella and they never gave it to him.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the breaks, could we just scoot a little bit, because I sure would like to get your testimony on the record and to do that, we’re going to need to—just make sure you’re in front of a microphone.  Thank you.  Okay, let me, let’s go to the shade and let’s talk a little bit about the breaks.  Are you, how are you informed under the heat regulations when the heat reaches obviously sometimes unbearable temperatures.  You know, one of the things that was negotiated, and I’m not sure how we ended up on it.  Dave Puglia’s here and I know he was part of that.  And I’ll probably ask Western Growers this, but you know, at what point as a worker is, do you feel you have a right to ask for a break?  In other words, there’s standard breaks and then there’s breaks under the heat regs, and I mean, are those asked for?  Do you feel you have right to ask for them, or do you feel there’s repercussions when you do ask for them?  And I’ll just use one industry.  Let’s say you’re in a bell pepper field.  And the machines are moving and it’s really hot.  At what point in time do you ask to slow down?  Or take a break, stop the machinery.  It really is hot.  We really need to take a break.  Does that occur?  I mean, it’s a broader questions, but I mean, on breaks alone, is there—and it can be anyone.  What you’ve heard ____.
UNIDENTIFIED:  (in Spanish)  Do you want to go from there?  Do you understand what I’m saying?  

UNIDENTIFIED:  (in Spanish) 
MS. ROSS:  Can you just translate that?  Can you just translate what he just said?

TRANSLATOR:  He says he rather for them to send him home and for him to save his life than to be under all that heat.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand.  But, I’m asking if, do you feel you have a right to ask for a break even though it’s not a regularly scheduled break when the heat is at a certain temperature?

UNIDENTIFIED:  (via translator)   He says the heat is unbearable and you drink water, you drink water and the thirst just doesn’t go away.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s not what I’m asking.  I’m asking you if there are workers who ask for a rest period or a break beyond what they normally get.  Have they asked for that in this really, as you mentioned, unbearable heat, they can’t work any more.  They’d rather be sent home.  That’s not my question.  My question is are workers, do workers have a feeling that they can ask for a break beyond that?  
TRANSLATOR:  I asked and they gave me something else.

UNIDENTIFIED:  (via translator) He says yes.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You have to ask for those and do they—

MS. ROSS:  She asked, have you asked for that break, and he said no.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just ask, I'm sorry, go ahead.

MS. ROSS:  No, he just said that if we ask for that break, it demonstrates that we don’t have the effort to work.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so, I guess the question is do you know you have a right to ask for a rest period beyond the standard breaks you get?  Do workers know that?

UNIDENTIFIED:  (via translator)  He says yes.  They do think they have the right to have an extra break other than their other breaks.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And they’re aware of that under this program or is it just, is that just a general feeling?

UNIDENTIFIED:  (via translator)  He thinks because the law is, you know, it’s enforced and because they think that’s the right thing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there anything else you would like to leave the committee before we have the Department come up?  Any other comments?  This would be . . .
What do you want the committee to do?  Ms. Ross could probably tell us that.

MS. ROSS:  We would love the committee to write a letter to the Governor in support of SB 180.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  Thank you very much.  Okay, let’s go ahead and have the Division of Occupational Safety and Health and the Department of Industrial Relations and Labor Agency please come up.  Ms. Watkins, Ms. Welsh, thanks for joining us.  Let’s proceed, I know you’re taking notes diligently as you heard workers talking, but let’s, let me go through 15 questions and if I could, and at the end, if I don’t capture anything, why don’t you then fill in some of the blanks.  And then I’d like to get your, some of your reactions to some of the things the workers said.  
But, first and foremost, let’s set the threshold.  The requirements of Section 3395 are the following: potable water, one quart, employee for each for each hour of shift, access to shade is not less than five minutes, training is for employees and supervisors and written procedures, procedures are supposed to be written for responding to heat illness, contacting emergency services, and telling emergency services how to get to the work site.  Is there anything beyond what I just mentioned in Section 3395 that the committee should be aware of?
MR. LEN WELSH:  I think you captured it.  Although I should mention that we do take care to mention a bunch of other regs that tangentially apply, and we're not trying to supersede them with this standard.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in other words, the other regs aren’t supposed to trump these particular regs.

MR. WELSH:  Correct.  And this is not supposed to trump those either.  This is supposed to add protection, not take it away.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are the disparencies (sic) if given this can’t trump another regulation that does not allow these regulations to be implemented to its fullest ability?

MR. WELSH:  No, absolutely not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so that they work in conjunction with each other?

MR. WELSH:  Correct.  Correct. The reason for that in some of our case law there’s this rule about the general versus the specific, and if you have two that say different things, possibly this specific law is supposed to trump the general one.  And we're trying to say the bottom line here is protection.  We’re trying to add protection only, not take anything away.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me cut to the heart of something I didn’t mention and that is the actual penalties and enforcement for this.  And that is, as we begin to negotiate these regs, I think a summer or two ago, there were some reference to penalties.  And maybe you can outline for us what are the penalties for non-compliance 23395?

MR. WELSH:  Well, in the CalOSHA system we assess our penalties through formulas that are prescribed by what we call director’s regulations.  And the first step is to classify the violation as to whether it’s what we call general or what we call serious.  And those are the two most common categories of regs.  There’s several others, but I think for this discussion, that will get us at least half way around.  And serious means that there’s, it’s more likely than not that a serious injury could result from the violation should an injury result.  And those penalties start at a certain range, at about $3,000 depending on the size of the employer.  I'm being very general here.  
And there are several factors the formulas apply to adjust those penalties like the size of the employer, whether the violation was willful or not, the seriousness of the violation.  And so in the end you come out with the regulatorily (sic) prescribed amount and that can be up to, well, by statute, it can be up to $25,000 and that amount can occur if somebody actually becomes sick, seriously ill as a result of the violation or if someone dies.  
Those are civil penalties and beyond the civil penalties structure, if there is any indication—the Labor Code sections provide that an employer’s negligent activity can be prosecuted by a district attorney.  And so in cases where there is a situation that looks like, you know, basically an egregious situation, then we have a special unit that investigates.  We call it the Bureau of Investigations and they investigate to see if any evidence exists of what could be chargeable by a district attorney.  And there’s a whole process there.  If we find that then we have to deal with the local district attorneys and they vary quite a bit in their responsiveness to these kinds of things.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me start where you ended, and that is some of our district attorneys come from very ag friendly counties.  So whether it’s Ed Jaegles in Kern County or whether it’s Elizabeth Eagan in Fresno, I mean, have you ever had a case where a district attorney goes down and fines or somehow is taken a farmer or grower to court?

MR. WELSH:  We did have some cases involving the dairy industry that were prosecuted.  There’s a, there has been a program called the circuit prosecutor statewide that exists to—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is the dairy industry example of one that dealt with the death in waste water manure?

MR. WELSH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, how about heat regs given today’s topic?

MR. WELSH:  I don’t know.  We're investigating some, but I don’t know of any prosecutions.  And they do, I mean they are going to vary.  It’s between us and the local district attorney.  We’ve had some preliminary discussions with the attorney General about getting involved in these kinds of cases.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what is the connection between the Attorney General, your bureau of investigation, and the D.A.s?  How does everyone get on the same page so that people know that this is taken quite seriously and that there are D.A. types of actions that they, themselves can take?

MR. WELSH:  Every case we investigate when we determine that we think there’s a chargeable offense, we make an appointment with the district attorney who has jurisdiction and we go over the evidence.  We submit the file and we decide whether—we don’t decide.  It’s up to the district attorney, but we essentially explain our case.  And we offer to assist if they want to prosecute.

The Attorney General thus far has not been involved in these cases at all.  There have been discussions we’ve had on and off with them about trying to get some coordinated action statewide with the Attorney General.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We’d like to be involved if we could with some of those discussions with the Attorney General.  I do know the Attorney General very much cares about this particular issue, and we would like to see if we could further that discussion.  
Have you mentioned the ability or you have and I wasn’t sure if it was past tense in terms of providing our D.A.s with real cases?  Has that happened?  Have you presented anything to the Fresno D.A. or to the Kern County D.A. or the Tulare D.A.?  And have they not acted on those or are we just haven’t presented them with anything?

MR. WELSH:  You know, to be honest, I’m not aware of any involving heat.  It’s possible that we’re in the process of doing that, but I’m not aware of any at this point. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, possible meaning we could or ____.

MR. WELSH:  I think we have some under investigation.  I’m not sure what the results of those have been.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so there are some under investigation.  And would, and they are related to heat?

MR. WELSH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And it is—

MR. WELSH:  Actually, they’re related to the investigation, I mean, you know, when we go out and do an investigation, it’s not always strictly because of heat.  We have—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand, but for purposes of this hearing, I'm just wondering if the investigations you mentioned are related to ____
MR. WELSH:  Yes, I believe they are.  One or two, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s the process for that so I can understand it?  So as you begin to investigate, I mean, United Farm Workers were here a moment ago saying, you know, we want, any way you look at it, better enforcement.  And I'm going to ask you two avenues here at the beginning.  One is are, if you will, government response enforcement action, and in a moment, I’m going to ask you about civil penalties.  So I’m just trying to figure out in terms of the levers of enforcement, on the public side we have a D.A. and a special investigation unit on your part you say they possibly could be heat related investigations ongoing, and so from there, how does that process work in your unit and how is it forwarded to the D.A.s?  And ultimately, how do people know that these cases are forwarded?  Are those private matters and D.A. simply and shut the book on them and they have a pile of, you know, at some point in time, non--items that weren’t moved on or somehow sat on the desk?  I mean, how, take me through that if you could.

MR. WELSH:  Well, we, like I said, we have a special unit that does these criminal investigations and they serve the whole state.  And in general—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many in your unit given it serves the whole state?

MR. WELSH:  There are about eight investigators.  And there’s a supervising investigator.  And then there’s our CalOSHA legal unit that has some involvement with them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then the eight investigators—are they regional or are they centralized in Sacramento?

MR. WELSH:   There’s a group in Los Angeles and a group in San Francisco.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  L.A., San Francisco.  Very few farm workers there.  So I guess the question I’d have is are those related to industries such as the garment industry or are they, are these folks also spreading out to some of the farm—

MR. WELSH:  Senator, I think I have to back up here a little bit, because I think you may be getting a slight misimpression.  The criminal activity—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I always have bad misimpressions.  I was just trying to help ____ clarifying for me.  

MR. WELSH:  No, I'm just trying to, you know, get a clear picture here.  I mean, we have this criminal investigation unit and most of the cases that we focus on are deaths, to be honest.  I mean basically, we prioritize investigations of deaths in connection with serious or worse violations.  And we get a number of those statewide, far greater than we have seen related to heat.  

As you know, since 2005 and since the Governor and your much appreciated cooperation has resulted in this new standard, we’re still ramping up to be honest, to get the word out to do the enforcement, to hone our approach, and to bring as many different forces to bear as we can in solving the kinds of problems you heard about earlier today.

So there is not a whole lot of criminal action here yet.  Or we have the enforcements statistics we have so far, and I can go over those with you, but as a part of the overall action in CalOSHA today, heat illness, actual heat illness violations are not that big a proportion.  They may, we hope actually they’ll never get to be that big.  I mean, a sign of our success would be that we have enough of a presence not just through enforcement, but through the use of the media, through the use of the industry organizations who are interested, and also, frankly, through collaboration with organizations like California Rural Legal Assistance who’s here today and the UFW attempting to work through the channels they have to bring workers like those who testified here today instead of coming to a hearing like this to come to our offices, get us those complaints so that we can investigate them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I do want to be clear that what I think I’m more interested in as you call it, the ramp up period for these regs, is just the process of the public process of investigations.  Because, that is one of the things that ___ our office gets many calls on.  And that is can you investigate?  And you know, I think for us to understand how we could tell those folks what the investigation is and how it proceeds, that’s helpful enough that you have a special unit. 
But, I do want to ask you about the special unit and the eight members of it or the eight FTE funded for this.  And you mentioned L.A. and San Francisco.  And of course being a Central Valley representative, I'm wondering, is there, would it be helpful to have more investigators particularly in, if you will, more heat sensitive areas, not that the Bay Area and Los Angeles aren’t, but I know, you know, it’s a major heat wave in Los Angeles when it’s 85.  You know, and in our area, it’s a heat wave when it’s 110.  So, I’m kind of wondering would that be helpful?  Is it something the Legislature can work with you on in terms of additional funding?  Or not?
MR. WELSH:  Well, first of all, again, I think there may be a misimpression here.  That unit is for criminal investigations.  We have essentially an inspectorate of about 215 to 220 employees statewide.  And they’re distributed throughout the state.  And I think I need to take a few minutes here to explain how the enforcement structure works.  I think that will help you to get at what you’re looking for.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now you’re going to be talking about the inspectors then?

MR. WELSH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   So in other words, in the criminal after the fact death is probably not helpful for additional—in other words, that’s just investigating a heinous, serious death, and therefore, the eight members of that group, we’re not really getting any bang for our buck after the fact.  So proactively on the investigators’ side is something we might want to consider spending more money.

MR. WELSH:  Well, you know, if you assume that most employers want to follow the law and I do, I do assume that the vast majority do want to follow the law, we need to get across the fact of what the law is and we need to let them know we’re enforcing it.  But, if you assume that most employers are not criminals by far and away the vast majority of employers are not criminals, then you want to find mechanisms to get compliance.  And believe me, there’s a huge difference between compliance and enforcement.  What we all want is compliance.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, well let’s get to that then.  And we’ll get to the inspectors.  The regulations require employers to have written procedures and I guess my question would be that in these written procedures, are there high risk areas certain industries that have, if you will, those types of regulations, procedures submitted to you for review.  In other words, I know you can’t review every single business for every single procedure in terms of heat related illness, but there are some high risk areas.  We just heard from some of them.  And I guess the question is are you, do you have sufficient capacity to review those plans and have those plans be forthcoming to your office?
MR. WELSH:  We have a program in for the construction industry called High Hazard Construction Permits.  This is a creature of statute.  It was a statute that was passed decades ago.  And—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The name of that again is?

MR. WELSH:  High Hazard Construction permits.  Labor Code Section 6500 et seq.  And these statutes provide for the folks who are engaging in high hazard construction projects like high rise construction over 36 feet high, and other statutorily defined types of construction to apply to CalOSHA to obtain a permit.  And as part of that process, we look at all their written procedures.  We look at their written injury and illness prevention program.  It, depending on the nature of the work they do, we might look at other written programs.  
I have to say that is an extremely resource intensive thing to do, and I think the Legislature cut it off there way back then, because they were sensitive to not wanting to overwhelm the agency with the paperwork that comes from a permitting program.  And really, if you talk about submitting paperwork and approving it, you’re talking about a permitting program.  So we have that for high hazard construction.  We have that for asbestos removal projects.  I think there’s a statute out there now being proposed to do the same thing with asbestos, with lead that we’re now doing with asbestos.  And we have some other minor programs like, well, not actually minor.  We have a crane unit that offers several things along those lines in connection with crane use.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And before we venture off on that, the high hazard construction requirement—is that a statewide requirement so you’re looking at—

MR. WELSH:  Yes, it is.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many—

MR. WELSH:  Unique to California, too, as far as I can tell.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many of those written plans are you reviewing right now?

MR. WELSH:  I could not tell you the number.  I’m going to guess that we have over a thousand applications a year for permits including what we call single project permits and high hazard construction permits.  Actually, we’ve changed the program a little bit so that some companies can get annual permits.  So I think the actual number of applications may be substantially higher than a thousand.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask—

MR. WELSH:  Projects, I think, number a thousand.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got it.  So there’s a thousand applications very labor intensive.  And let me get to my original question and that is, are there high risk, let’s use heat, go back to heat.  Is there high risk areas in California that we could basically of the 58 counties say that there are a few counties, so Kern, Tulare, Kings, Fresno, some parts of the San Diego area, some parts of, I mean, so really, how many counties are there that are high risk for this occupation called farm working, for example, farm workers, what would you say, how many counties are there?

MR. WELSH:  Well, I don’t know if I can give you a number of counties, but we’ve looked at the weather data from ’05 and ’06, and clearly the eastern part of the state suffers more from high heat than the western part.  And clearly the southern part tends to suffer more than the northern part, although the distribution varied quite a bit from ’05 to ’06.  In fact, the difference between ’05 and ’06 is quite instructive.  When we’re trying to sit here and how do we really target, and targeting is what this is really about.  That’s what you’re getting out, how can we target.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah.

MR. WELSH:  Certainly we do want to have some sort of proportionality between the amount of work we’re doing on the ground and the hazards we’re looking at, we want to be where the highest concentration is.  I’m not sure necessarily though, that it’s a regional question, because farm workers move around quite a bit.  And I think probably the more effective approach is the work force and characteristics of the work force and the work itself and how to penetrate those issues.  And not just for agriculture.  I mean, we, this is an outdoor reg and, you know, we saw Hispanic workers today, Hispanic workers are in lots of other work besides agriculture.  They’re heavily represented in construction as well, especially now.  So the issue really is outdoor work and how to target those work forces and those employers so that they take these issues seriously.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Exactly.  And I guess for purposes of this hearing and at least my concern is for farm workers as a subset of your subset.  So in other words, we got, sounds as though the Legislature got very specific with high hazard constructions.  In other words, we found it a long time ago very important for those workers who are working in this hazardous to create a whole statute.  And the Governor was very thankful and he said, this is great.  We didn’t have to create a statute.  And everybody was applauded here, because there didn’t have to be a bill to, in essence, get to the kinds of protections or review from your department, the high hazard industry gets.  
I would say that that would probably be revisited if we don’t necessarily get the regs right.  So, you know, wouldn’t be a surprise to you that if we put a bill in that said we think that farm workers in high concentrated areas where there’s heat even though they are a subset of outdoor workers should have in their plans in agriculture and growers and contractors should have the same review as high hazard workers working on certain bills.  And I know that sounds, you know, like a lot of work, but I’m kind of wondering it doesn’t sound like it’s a statewide program.  It sounds as though there’s some areas that are truly high risk that one might begin looking at.  I mean—
MR. WELSH:  When you say high, you mean in heat?  Some areas that are higher in heat that we might ___?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You wouldn’t be in Eureka, right, looking for farm workers there?  You wouldn’t be—

MR. WELSH:  We might.  I mean, depending on the weather.  I mean, I think part of this is being in tune with the weather.  And I can say this, that most of the action as we’ve been studying this occurs in connection with heat waves.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there an almond tree in San Francisco county?

MR. WELSH:  I’m sorry?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there an almond tree in San Francisco county?  I mean are there counties we can eliminate because of some of the work being agricultural related?

MR. WELSH:  I think obviously we can deemphasize certain areas, for sure.  I just think that it, you know, you can be tempted to compartmentalize, because that’s what helps us get ____.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got it.  I’m tempted to compartmentalize because we want you to review written plans by growers and contractors who are supposed to, at the very minimum, at the very beginning of this process have a written procedure.  And I know that your assumption is all employers are not criminals.  But, I’ll give you that assumption.  But, my assumption is not all employers have written procedures.  

MR. WELSH:  Agreed.  Agreed.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so given that they don’t, and given that you’re responsible or we want to give you the responsibility for reviewing those plans just as we do in the high hazard construction area, what is the barrier to do that from your vantage point?
MR. WELSH:  Well, let me first say just again so we’re clear, the reason we, the reason they came up with the high hazard construction permit program was in part, in large part, because construction is very complex work.  And it often involves lots of different contractors coming together with lots of different kinds of expertise, engineering issues, things that are difficult to get right unless you really are specialized and you know what you’re doing.  And so the plan review there a lot of the time has to do with the complexity of dealing with the hazards so that you’re dealing with it effectively.  In general, and the same is true for—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you say that most of the contractors in that particular—I know, Barry is here and some of our labor representatives, but would you say that the contractors in the construction industry have a higher level of sophistication than farm worker labor contractors in terms of what the compliance that they are used to dealing with as compared to farm worker ____?
MR. WELSH:  Well, if you’re talking about high rise construction steel erection contractors, I’d say yes.  But, you can’t generalize about the construction industry that way.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I know.  I guess my point is you have a greater likelihood of construction industry contractors being aware of regulations, OSHA laws, complying paperwork.

MR. WELSH:  No, not necessarily.  And we actually, you know, part of our outdoor work, for example, has focused on residential framing where we found a lot of non-compliance in the beginning.  And this really is a lot about targeting.  What I’m trying to say to you is that if we want employers to have the written plans, we want the written plans to be competent and we want them to be complied with which is what the bottom line compliance—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, first you have to have a written plan.  You’re taking ____, too.  

MR. WELSH:  But, these are not difficult written plans to come up with what needs, what’s needed is the motive, okay.  And that was even clear in the testimony earlier today.  The workers don’t want to take a break, even though they seem to feel they have the right to do it, they don’t want to take the break and that’s an education issue.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand.  Let’s get back to where it starts and that is there—let me ask a threshold question that I didn’t want to ask, but let me ask you.  How many contractors in farm workers, who contract for farm workers, labor contractors’ plans have you reviewed?

MR. WELSH:  I can’t tell you that number.  I can tell you how many inspections we’ve done outdoors.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, I’m asking about written—

MR. WELSH:  I can tell you this.  When we do an outdoor inspection, okay, we don’t, you know, we don’t have statistics that say how many FLCs we’ve looked at.  We do have statistics that tell us how many ag, how many work places classified as agriculture we have been into to inspect and every single one of those inspections we look for compliance with heat illness.  We look for the injury and illness prevention program, and we look for the written plans that the regs now require.  And by the way, that requirement, you know, just came into being toward the end of last summer.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand.  I guess what I’m trying to relay to you is that we, it does start with a written plan.  Okay.  So if I were to go ask the three farmer friends that I might still have in the Central Valley, I would ask them the question, by the way you employ 50 people.  Do you have a written policy on heat regs?  And do you mind if I take a look at them?  That’s just me asking them.  And the response I would get would probably vary.  

MR. WELSH:  I think you’d find a lot have them.  I think we are in a phase now where people are—I mean, I'm telling you.  We have blanketed the state with this information for two summers now.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand.  So a lot meaning—when you say a lot would that would mean that not all of them would.  So a lot would mean a subset of everyone would have a written plan.  

MR. WELSH:  You’re never going to find 100 percent compliance.  I don’t care how great the program is.  I think we're in a phase of increasing compliance.  I think the curve is upward sharply and I think it will continue to go upward.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How do I make it go upward quicker?

MR. WELSH:  Well, I’ll tell you one way we’re trying to do that.  There is host of things I could tell you about the work we’ve been doing to get the work out.  I think you don’t want to hear about that right now, so I won’t bore you with that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s, let me give you a little breathing room and say why don’t you tell us what it is and then we’ll go through it.  Tell me why we shouldn’t worry the fact that not every single employer may have—

MR. WELSH:  Well, I'm not saying we shouldn’t worry.  I'm not saying that at all. I’m just saying we have to have a good understanding of reality here if we want to change what the reality is.  And again, I’m really trying to get focused on compliance here, because that’s what we all want.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Compliance to what?

MR. WELSH:  Compliance with heat illness regulation as well as all the other regulations we enforce that protect workers from dying, getting sick, and getting—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I understand, but compliance to a plan?  

MR. WELSH:  Compliance with health and occupational safety and health standards, among others, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got it.  But, you don’t write the plan for every single employer.

MR. WELSH:  No, that’s their job.  That’s called compliance.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s my threshold question.  That’s where, we’re right back to given that’s their job, given that’s the base case, given that’s how we check on whether or not this whole thing is going to work ultimately, because you’re not going to write the plan for them.  How do we make sure that they’ve written the plans and how do you ensure to us that they pass muster?  
MR. WELSH:  Okay, the first issue is making sure that everybody knows the law exists.  Everybody knows first of all the law has come into being.  Second of all, what the law requires, and we’re fortunate here, because we’re talking about fairly simple things.  We’re not talking about steel erection standard here.  We’re talking about a fairly simple regulation here, getting across to them that they know what it is they’re supposed to do including the written plan, getting, prioritizing some of the issues.  
For example, everybody assumes, oh! the issue is do we have water available at the site?  Well, the study we conducted of the incidents that have happened to date showed that 90 percent of the time water was at the site.  And however the workers were dehydrated.  They weren’t drinking the water.  So there’s an issue there.  And we're not quite sure why that is.  We think some of it is simply making people understand how important it is to drink a quart of water an hour.  That’s, you know, inconvenient.  And how also important it is to understand that you might not feel thirsty.  Especially if you’ve been drinking the night before.  And you have to sort of have a discipline about drinking the water every, a cup of water every 15 minutes.  
Now there’s a role there for the employee to understand that that’s important.  There’s a big role there for the supervisor to understand how important that is and do everything a supervisor can do to make that water available, make it so that the worker doesn’t feel bad about stopping the work operation to go get a drink of water.  There, you know, there’s some real thinking that has to go into that.  There’s the issue of acclimatization.  Acclimatization is not too different from hey, you know what?  I want to go in, I want to get physically fit, so I’m going to go to the gym and I’m going to start working out gangbusters first day.  And what’s going to happen to me if I do that if I’m not in shape?  I’m going to drop dead, very possibly.  
Acclimatization is kind of the same thing.  If you start working in the heat and you have not been worked into that routine, your body has not been hardened to that kind of work and you haven’t, you know, developed acclimatization to heat, then your risk of getting sick or dying is a lot greater.  Again, there’s a role for both the employee.  The employee has to understand how important that is and the employer, of course, also has to understand how important that is.  And both have to understand that that’s a different issue on a day like today when it’s kinda hot.  But, it’s not a heat wave versus a day like we had last summer when we had some of the most extraordinary heat this state had ever seen.  
So those are, I mean, there’s a sort of a—heat is heat.  What’s the big deal?  Well, people don’t understand that it is a big deal and that’s part of the public health problem we’re facing right now is getting across to people that have something that is very familiar and then they might not think of as hazardous like driving in a car actually is hazardous and you really have to pay attention to it.  And the things you do are quite simple.  Almost so simple that you think, ha, ha, how can it be that important?  But, they make the difference between life and death many times.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask a question.  I mean, given that that is important and heat is a kind of a sneak up on you factor in climate and you mentioned, I mean, why aren’t employers requiring that the right amount of fluids are being drunk off the side, if you will, in order to , I mean, you have a captive audience, your employees.  
MR. WELSH:  Your question is why aren’t employers requiring them to drink?  Well, you can’t force somebody to drink.  You know, we had one of my staff tried to say that at an advisory committee meeting and kind of got laughed out of the room.  I mean, you can’t force somebody to drink.  That’s their own personal decision.  You can encourage them, and that’s really the issue is encouraging.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, how do our employers encourage them?

MR. WELSH:  Well, for one, the first thing they have to do is train them.  And we heard some issues earlier today about training that sounded like, you know, there’s more training that’s needed.  So training is a biggie.  Doesn’t sound real sexy, but it’s very important.  And the training here is a part of what motivates people to appreciate the tools you’re offering, the simple tools you’re offering is understanding that, you know, what the consequence is if you don’t do that.  And so understanding that you really could die, that you really could get sick, and it’s not from something else.  It’s just from regular old heat.  That’s a very important thing, understanding if you’re a diabetic that your risk is a whole lot higher.  Understanding things like that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  let’s go on to the inspection now.  So, in other words, written procedures you fully expect a good majority of employers have and if they don’t, when you go out for inspection, you’re also asking for those so that you can check to see if they—

MR. WELSH:  Absolutely.  Every time we do an outdoor inspection we ask for their written procedures.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s move past the written procedure.  In terms of those who are inspected, how do we decide who’s inspected?  I mean, ultimately how do we decide what employers are going to be inspected?

MR. WELSH:  That’s an excellent question.  We have—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I try to ask a few of those once in awhile.

MR. WELSH:  No, they’re all good questions.  You know, it’s just, it’s not an easy subject, you know.  You know, we’re, our system in California is very complaint oriented.  We have a Labor Code provision that says we must respond to what we call formal complaints, which are complaints from an employee, for the most part, complaints from an actual employee or their representative.  We must respond within 14 days to a general complaint, complaint of a non-serious hazard.  A non-serious hazard we must do an inspection.  Three days in response to a complaint of a serious hazard.  So we get a large complaint load, and we actually do get, you know, a fair amount from the construction industry.  Then we have this issue about, well you know, some industries tend to give you more complaints than others.  Some workers tend to feel more confident that if they complain to CalOSHA they’re going to get service.  They’re not going to get retaliated against.  They want to keep their names confidential almost always.  And can we really trust the agency to keep their name confidential, and that’s a big part of our getting good complaints from employees, is them understanding, yes, we really are going to do that.  So there’s the complaint system.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What constitutes a formal complaint?

MR. WELSH:  A complaint for the most part a complaint from an actual employee, someone who’s actually employed, or their representatives.  So, the UFW can give us a complaint and we’ll act on it with an inspection, a worker can give us a complaint, and many times a non-formal complaint, if it sounds like something that we need to attend to we’ll go out and do it.  It’s just the law in that case doesn’t absolutely require it.

So the point I’m making there is that the law, under the law we have to respond to a lot of complaints which we might not necessarily prioritize as the most important to respond to those 14-day, non-serious complaints.  So in order to compensate for that, we have this other part of the program—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me stop you for a moment.  I know that you—and before you go onto the other part of the program—so farm workers mentioned earlier, you know, we call a number, leave a message, and no one ever calls us back.  So I guess, you know, number one, it’s not necessarily if the call was made or not.  I guess what I’m asking is do you consider that a formal or informal—

MR. WELSH:  Absolutely.  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, which one?  Informal or formal?

MR. WELSH:  A formal. One that we want to inspect on.  Any employee’s complaint.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay so what would you make of that comment that no one ever calls them back?

MR. WELSH:  You know, I don’t know what to make of that, Senator, honestly.  I mean, I'm not sure who they called, number one.  We have district offices throughout the state.  They take calls 24 hours a day.  There’s no recording.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How do workers know your number?  I mean, I just want to know the process.  How do people know if there’s a complaint, to call you.  ____ the farm workers.

MR. WELSH:  We have put information out saying that.  I think you’re putting your finger on a very important issue.  How do we reach the workers?  Okay?  And for the complaint part of this, there’s a sweet part I can tell you about, but for the complaint part of this, one of the mechanisms that we’ve been having some success with is something that we’ve worked out with California Rural Legal Assistance over the last several years.  They came to us and said, you know, we send you complaints.  You go out there and you always say you didn’t find a violation.  And so as we engaged in discussions with them, we found out the problem was that the work moved so fast, that by the time we get the complaint, often, and we get out there, it’s gone.  We can’t find any hazard.  
So then we had discussions, well how can we get the complaint faster?  And how can we get a complaint that gives us the detail we need so that we can get out to the exact spot, you know, within a time frame that’s going to work?  And also, is there some way that the workers who are making the complaint might gather some evidence before or after they call us just in case by the time we get out there, it’s gone.  And so we’ve had those discussions.  We’ve actually done joint training with them.  And we’ve invited UFW in the past to do that.  We’re actually having a discussion this Friday.  I’m going to be down in Bakersfield tomorrow to talk about not only a Spanish web complaint form to put up, you know, on our website, and also for them to distribute, but also trying to work out a procedure so that we have a network created so that if they have a complaint, they know exactly who to call.  They know they’re going to get somebody who speaks Spanish if they need somebody who speaks Spanish.  And it’s going to be somebody who’s familiar with ag and these particular issues.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. WELSH:  That, I think, is probably about the most effective way we can get complaints that we can act on.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So the way you prioritize the complaints, formal, informal, there is a process in place, there’s a number they can call, it is in English and Spanish, and it is available 24 hours a day without an answering machine.

MR. WELSH:  There are local numbers they can call and the phone is answered in English.  If they need somebody who speaks Spanish then we have a way to get them a Spanish speaker.  We are working on an 800 number.  Frankly, I don’t think that’s the most effective approach, but we’re working on that now.  By far and away the most effective approach is to have enough district offices distributed statewide so that they can get a call which is going to be more or less local, and somebody, you know, reasonably nearby can be sent out to look in a timely way.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when you say the ultimate goal is to get more district offices statewide, does that mean—

MR. WELSH:  I didn’t say that.  I said we have them.  We have quite a number of district offices distributed statewide.  I didn’t say the goal is to get more.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the number is sufficient?

MR. WELSH:  I think it is, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have a Bakersfield office?

MR. WELSH:  What’s that?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have a Bakersfield office?

MR. WELSH:  No, we don’t have a Bakersfield office, but we have several offices near there.  Near enough, I think.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what’s the nearest to Bakersfield given that’s where the majority of farm worker deaths from heat occurred during the summer that we created these regs?

MR. WELSH:  Boy, that’s a test of California geography for me, and I can’t answer that.  I’m sorry.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, would that be 200 miles?

MR. WELSH:  Oh, no.  I think much closer than that.  I think we can get there within 45 minutes to an hour.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so what would do you think we need an office in the vicinity that has quite a bit of ___?

MR. WELSH:  You know, honestly, Senator, I don’t think the issue is response time itself, you know, like it’s too far away for us to get there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You just said one of the major, you just said—

MR. WELSH:  The issue is the network.  You need a network.  You need a network of offices that are reasonably close to where the problem’s going to be.  You need a network of people who understand what the issue is.  You need a network of people who are, in this case, we have this problem we’re trying to penetrate an area where work takes place which is what the EEEC Coalition was all about that the labor agencies started under the Governor’s leadership, you know, around the same time as this heat standard.  It’s what a lot of things are about that we’re doing is, you know, penetrating into areas that have not traditionally been served.  
And the issue I think is not throwing more bodies necessarily at it, not throwing more district offices necessarily at it, but making sure that we have the training and the understanding to know what the specific issues are for these folks and we also have the network there.  We have a sweep program to try to catch the work when it’s happening without the employers knowing it and also to get good information from workers who know what to report and who trust us enough to actually report to us.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Question on employers, now.  ___ switch a bit.  You heard me mention the tailgate training.

MR. WELSH:   They didn’t understand what you were asking.  They really didn’t.  I mean, the issue was training and it sounded like—they understood that when it got to training.  You know, they seemed to be saying they weren’t getting training, although they did seem to understand that there was a law.  So it sounds like they got some information.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Why would you think they didn’t understand what I asked?  I mean, I guess I heard the interpretation.

MR. WELSH:  Well, you said tailgate training, and that’s a specific approach to training.  It, you know, the idea is that, you know—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that on your website?  
MR. WELSH:  Tailgate training?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah.

MR. WELSH:  You can find the phrase, yes.  It’s usually used in connection with construction.  We’re trying to import the concept into agriculture.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I'm just using what’s on your website.  So, what is your concept of tailgate training?  You put it on your website.  

MR. WELSH:  Okay.  Let me explain.  You know, first you want to have formal, real training.  You know, question and answer training so the worker actually feels they had a conversation.  And if they have specific questions about what they’re being told to do, they get an answer and if they don’t understand it, they can say, hey, I don’t understand that.  You know, run it by me again.  Not just some videotape presentation or some card and that’s it.  So you want to have real, live, you know, conversational training.

Then you want to have what we call reinforcement, because people sort of, you know, they, over time other things sort of take the place of what they know and they take things for granted.  Tailgate training is more in the nature of that kind of training reinforcement.  It’s like a spot training you might do every day you start the shift or every several days you start the shift.  Hey, by the way, folks, and it’s timely, too.  It’s supposed to be sort of relevant to what the issue of the day is, so for example, if a heat wave is about to come or we’re starting one up or we’re in the middle of one--Hey, folks, it’s hot today!  We have different procedures today.  Here’s what they are.  That kind of thing.  Don’t forget.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How do we ensure that occurs in the fields?

MR. WELSH:  I think the most effective way to ensure that by far and away is the, is education of the employers themselves, because employers and employees in a lot of ways are in the same boat.  They historically have underappreciated the hazard.  I find in all of my contacts once they really do appreciate the hazard, employers don’t want this problem any more than the workers do.  They don’t want one of their workers dying.  I found a lot of them been totally traumatized by it.  It’s the last thing in the world they ever want to have to deal with in their life, so I think it’s really an issue of getting an appreciation of the hazard.  

And it doesn’t hurt, of course, to let them know that we’re watching, and that we have different enforcement mechanisms to look over their shoulder and make sure it’s getting done.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how do the employers, and I’ll ask this one of the Farm Bureau and Western Growers, I mean, how the employers training themselves and/or do they receive some guidance?  Are you doing workshops?  I mean, the employers, obviously, train workers, I assume, or let them know that there are certain times they should be more careful?  I mean, how does that ____?

MR. WELSH:  Well, we have, again, back to the network concept—there is a network of employer organizations with whom CalOSHA is in contact with.  And of course, this has been one of the main messages we’ve been giving them since we began this program, is that we, you know, we have to do this.  We have to have the training, you know.  We're happy to train with you.  We’ve had, you know, lots of difference training sessions with them.  Then again, they have their problem.  They have to get the message out to their members.  And I think they do a great job of getting the message out to their members, but of course, their members don’t represent all of the places of employment we’re talking about in the state.  Their members represent a portion and probably the best portion of employers in the state.  
And so then there’s that final little problem we have—how do we get to those companies that are not part of any network?  How do we either motivate them to create a network for themselves, or find another way to reach them.  You know, get across to them, hey, there’s a consequence to not complying here.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go over three other aspects, water, shade, and I think that we’ll wrap this up, and then after that.  The regulations require potable water, and you heard the farm workers talk about, you know, the foremens (sic) filling them up.  Is that allowable?  Not allowable?  What—

MR. WELSH:  Okay, I think what they were saying, or were trying to say, I mean they suspected the purity of the water, and it, you know, one issue that’s come up is the use of irrigation water for drinking water.  I mean that’s a well know no-no in the agriculture industry and elsewhere.  And I think it does occur from time to time.  I think, you know, it’s probably something, you know, since the field sanitation standard came into being in the early 90s, pure water, you know, became an issue in agriculture and that’s one of the issues we tackled early on.  so I think there’s less of that going on.  But, it’s possible what they were referring to was the use of water that either they didn’t trust, and because it might be irrigation water or something that, you know, just wasn’t clearly, you know, the potable water for that municipality.  

Clearly, if they were using impure water that’s a violation.  That’s the, you know, one of the things we jump on in a minute if we saw it going on  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, are those citations if there’s a violation?

MR. WELSH:  Absolutely.  That’s violative of several standards.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And let’s talk about shade.  The shade requirement, obviously, we heard quite a bit of testimony on various devices.  I think one was shade for propped up on water containers.  I asked if they could bring their own shade, and the reg, as I remember it, required certain types of shade.  I mean, what can you just tell us broadly about that?  And then I just—

MR. WELSH:  The reg requires shade, period.  You got to have shade.  Real shade, not, you know, half shade, not sorta shade sometimes, sorta not so much shade other times.  There is a requirement for shade for all the workers as needed when they want to take advantage of it to cool off and rest.  And there are some issues that go along with that.  One is the adequacy of the shade itself.  You know, and we say you shouldn’t be able to see your shadow in the area of shade.  That’s one easy visual common sense way to say, yep, that’s real shade.

Secondly, there is another issue that was kind of, that was an issue for one of the people here earlier today.  The place to provide shade should not be heated up because it’s sitting in the sun.  In other words, if you’ve got some kind of a shed that you wand to be the source of shade, that’s probably not going to work, because it’s going to serve as an oven.  So, you know, something like an umbrella, parasol, any sort of covering you could set up that has the four sides open to the air is going to be considered adequate shade.  So that’s what we want to see.  And that’s what we will issue a citation for if don’t see.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And are there, I mean, given that ag particularly in farm workers have various different configurations in terms of the, you know, grape fields are different than almonds, and almonds are different than citrus, are there any sort of best practices that are looked at?  Maybe one grower has a great idea for shade and, you know, grape fields, for example, that can be shared among other growers that seem to be particularly work—
MR. WELSH:  You know, I think you’re going to see over, I mean they’ve experimented with different approaches.  Some wanted to use the natural shade of the vines and the trees as a starting point.  And we had lots of discussions about that.  I could never say absolutely it’s never okay to use the shade from a tree.  But, there, you know, you don’t want to have the worker to, you know, crouch in an uncomfortable position in order to get cool.  You certainly don’t want them getting underneath a tractor or something like that.  So you want them to be able to sit or, you know, in a comfortable position and cool off in real shade.  And I think, you know, over time we’re going to see that the standard practices to use those things you buy at Home Depot that you, you know, that are transportable, you set up with four poles and a nice big, broad canvas covering.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I set them up every Saturday a swim meets, so I know.

MR. WELSH:  You know, you can set them up, you can take them down.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Pop ups.  Who buys those?  I mean, ultimately, I think the workers—

MR. WELSH:  The employer must buy them.  It’s not the employees’ responsibility and we’re quite firm about that.  Now, I’m not—I think it happens that employees bring their own and in some cases there’s non-compliance by the employers and that’s frankly a whoopin’ as we call it in the business.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so employers under the regs are required to do that.

MR. WELSH:  Absolutely.  And pay for—they’re required to pay for all safety items required.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then the ag industry given that employers are, in many cases, hiring contractors, farm labor contractors, I mean, in that relationship, who buys and who’s responsible?

MR. WELSH:   The farm labor contractor generally is the direct employer, and so it’s always the direct employer’s responsibility.  Under our law, there are situations where another entity and that could include a farm owner or it could include a general contractor, has enough safety and health responsibility over the work so that they bear some liability if those requirements aren’t meant.  It’s called our multi-employer citation policy.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And just last, how do you check in to make sure let’s say the LCs are actually purchasing these types of pop-ups?

MR. WELSH:  I don’t have any way at the moment to check in to see if they’re being purchased.  I would say that our most effective way to verify usage is through our sweep program.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So there’s no pro-active way to ensure that the proper equipment is actually available in the event of—
MR. WELSH:  I believe the sweep is our pro-active way to do that.  It’s, I haven’t had a chance to explain what that is, but that is the best solution we’ve been able to come up with is a general enforcement mode to catch employers who are non-compliant who we don’t normally reach through the normal channels.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, it’s, you said sweep?

MR. WELSH:  Yes.  Would you like me to explain that?  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah.

MR. WELSH:  What we do is we, since we, it’s very hard, you know, for construction and agriculture, they have a lot of similarities in this respect.  The work often is fast moving and it’s seasonal.  And so, for example, in agriculture we will track a harvest of say, your almonds, grapes, whatever different crop, they’re often on different schedules.  So we time our sweep activity to the harvest, for example, and the regions in which the harvests are done.  Also, the stuff that goes on in advance of a harvest and so we show up unannounced and we look for the activity and we just do our inspection.  And we use different mechanisms to try and figure out number one, where the activity’s going on so that we see the actual activity right there in its raw form without any advanced notice to us so they can make everything pretty like one of the people testifying earlier was suggesting.

That’s the primary mechanism.  We also sometimes get tips both from employees and employers about where activity’s going and we often, you know, we can respond to that as a complaint or we can respond with a sweep if we think we’re going to, you know, that’s sort of the tip of the ice berg.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And is that given that that’s the practical method of making sure, let’s say, farm labor contractors have shade, how many have you conducted, sweeps, and how effective has that been in terms of providing additional shade?

MR. WELSH:  Well, I can give you the shade violations we’ve issued if you want to see those statistics.  I can tell you overall that we are averaging over 3,000 inspections per year in outdoor places of employment which include, well that’s primarily construction and agriculture.  And so we’re looking for compliance in those inspections.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Give me the stat then.  You said you could.  

MR. WELSH:  So you want shade violations?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Shade.  Yeah.

MR. WELSH:  We have for ’05 we weren’t really looking for shade, so the statistic is zero.  For ’06, we found eight shade violations, five of which we classified as serious.  In ’07 so far we found 15 shade violations, 12 of which we classified as serious, and we’re only halfway through the year.  So that’s kind of the ramp up I was telling you about.  Trending upward.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. WELSH:  And I think what’s going to happen, the pattern you can expect is that we’re going to see for a while we’re going to see an increase in the numbers of violations we find.  And then we’re going to start, that’s going to be the tip of the bell shaped curve.  And then we’re going to start to see it go down.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Can you, can at some point in time we go on one of your sweeps with you?  I’d like to see first hand.

MR. WELSH:  I don’t see why not.  I think that would be an interesting experience.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’d just like to see first had what is looked at.  What plans are, you know, where’s your written plan?  Where’s your shade?  You know, that might be useful for myself.

MS. STEPHANIE WATKINS:  I think it’s important to note that the EEEC, the way the function is sort of dual action between EDD, CalOSHA.  It’s under the Labor Agency, and one of the things that they do is not only do the sweeps in seven different industries, is they follow that up as sort of an information campaign with people and employers to let them know.  So not only are we citing people, but the important part is the compliance.  And we want to let people know after we cited them exactly what they need to do in the spirit of the law to comply.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Let’s go to breaks, break times.  I think you’ve heard we asked the workers about their thought about a rest period or a break.  And I’m not sure we ended up in those negotiations with an official break, a rest period.  I’m just trying to figure out where we ended up on the reg.  What is the official regulation in terms of during the very hot times a rest period?

MR. WELSH:  Actually, the reg is effective year round.  That was one of the last minute changes we made.  It’s not just for hot weather, it’s for all year round, because often it’s hard to predict where the hot weather’s going to be, especially in southern, you know, southeastern California.  So, it’s year round effective.  And the criteria are that you decide you need a break because you’re tired, and you feel you need a time to cool down.  You’re required to get at least five minutes of cool down time and that’s not limited to once per day.  It’s as much as you need it.  Also, if you, this is controversial—if you feel that you’re getting sick from heat illness, you can take a break as well.  And the reason that was controversial is that there was some concern by people including me that that could be misinterpreted as that you’re supposed to wait until you’re sick until you get the break.  But, the, it’s seen that the labor organizations wanted both criteria, and so we put that in.  
And you know, I think it’s, and the reason they wanted it, there’s a good reason why they wanted it.  They felt that, you know, people do, you know, for many people, the trigger for them is that they’re sick.  And that they, even when they feel like they’re sick, they feel like they’re supposed to keep working.  So, it’s kind of permission.  Hey, if you feel sick, it’s okay to stop.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The, what your department puts out in terms of the training for employers and for employees to know their rights, it’s pretty specific on the heat and the water.  But, I guess most of, a lot of what I’ve looked at in terms of this particular issue, the ability to take a break or a rest period, seems to be somewhat missing in terms of the written portion of what you put out.  I mean, is there anything in writing that employers or employees can see that specifically gives them the types of protections you just mentioned?

MR. WELSH:  Yes, yes.  We put out several publications that do that.  You know, the information is out there.  And I will say this, you know, different employer organizations have stepped up to the plate and they’ve put out their own information.  And there are, you’re going to see, you know, differing interpretations of how people have characterized it.  And I think we are going to be doing some work with everybody who cares to weigh in on what they think is required to harmonize the message, so there’s as little confusion about it and there’s as much of a punch as possible.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you just maybe give the committee one piece of information given that it’s written.  We would like to see it.

MR. WELSH:  I’d be happy to give you everything we have.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  No, just one on ability to take a break.

MR. WELSH:  Okay.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One document.

MR. WELSH:  Okay, you have it.  You got it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I guess you’ve answered most of my questions.  Let me just ask you about the National Weather Service and projections for dangerous types of conditions when it comes to heat.  I mean, how do you interplay with that in terms of the heat regs?  How do they work with that?

MR. WELSH:  Well, you know, the message we’ve been putting out to everybody is how important watching the weather is first of all.  You know, we really are seeing that even though these standards apply statewide all the time, we’re talking about short windows of time where things get to a certain point and it really becomes very hazardous, you know, unlike anything we’re really used to.  So tracking the weather and you know, basically giving the information to track the weather is one of the big messages we’re putting out there.  
And the reason, you know, part if it, you know, is that many companies, most I think, are going to go well beyond the bare bones of the reg when the weather gets to a certain point.  And in fact, some of the advisories we will be putting out and have put out already have said, hey, look, when the weather gets super hot, start thinking about doing things differently.  Start thinking about it as an extraordinary situation.  You know, if the weather gets really, really hot, you know, and we may, you know, we are in that era we’re calling global warming, now, we may see more of this and we may see worse than what we’ve seen so far.  And so be prepared to treat it as an emergency if it gets to that point.  And that means things get done very differently.  
So basically, you know, the U.S. Weather Service is the first place we stop in order, you know, to find out what weather’s predicted.  And the message we give is go, you know, track that.  Make that a part of your safety program.  Track the weather and be on it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate the testimony.  

MR. WELSH:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let’s go to, if we could, our Panel II, which is Dave Puglia, Western Growers; Anne Katten, the Rural Legal Assistance Foundation; and Roy Gabriel, of course, legislative director, California Farm Bureau.  Okay, this will round out our discussion on heat regulations, and then we’ll turn our attention over to heat reporting.  And so maybe just some general impressions, really no set questions, but maybe some of the questions that I’ve asked you could answer, as well.  So, Mr. Puglia, you want to go ahead and start, and we’ll go to Rural Legal Assistance and _____.

MR. DAVE PUGLIA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Dave Puglia with Western Growers.  I’ll keep my comments brief.  I know you have questions to ask, but I think Mr. Welsh’s testimony was instructive for all of us.  We are in a ramp up period.  Having said that, he also mentioned very accurately that there are organizations that were involved at the outset in crafting this regulation, working with you, with the administration, Western Growers was one of them along with the Grape and Tree Fruit League and others, to make it a success.  And as Mr. Welsh said, the objective here is to penetrate thoroughly to both employers and their employees to make people aware of the hazards, to make sure we know where the resources are, and I think most importantly, to go beyond compliance with the letter of the regulation, but to embrace the regulation and the spirit of the regulation and tailor our training and our outreach in that way.  
One of the things we’ve done from the outset is communicate that message to our members, that it’s not enough to simply comply with the letter of the law, but you need to go beyond that, because we’re talking about human health and safety.  We’re talking about an issue that’s fairly new in terms of the regulatory presence.  And so to give you some examples, I’ve been asked and staff of Western Growers have been asked almost from day one the question you’ve been asking, what constitutes shade, for instance?  Does a row of grape vines constitute adequate shade?  What about a tree canopy?  It may or may not.  Our advice has always been you had better be very careful that is there is a single ray of sunlight coming through that tree canopy, you’re going to get dinged.  Don’t take that risk.  Do what’s best for the employees.  Make the investment in canopies that can move with the crews and make sure that you provide adequate shade.  The same goes for all the other provisions in this regulation.  
I want to just take a couple of minutes to give you some details as to some of the things we’ve done.  Other organizations have taken similar actions within the agriculture industry.  I can’t speak, obviously, to folks outside the agriculture industry who are affected by the regulation.  We have a bi-weekly email newsletter that has had dozens of bulletins and alerts on the effective date of the regulation, it’s contents, elements of compliance, resources that can be tapped into by employers, a monthly magazine has featured numerous articles and advertisements for training seminars.  We conducted three such training seminars last year.  I’m sorry, in 2005, and another one last year to help employers understand what the regulation requires and how they can comply with it.
We have like many others, printed and distributed tens of thousands, I would say it’s in the hundreds of thousands--Mr. Gabriel probably has a higher number than we do, of wallet size cards that help employees in the field to understand the symptoms of heat stress, what they need to do to avoid those, the onset of those symptoms, drinking water, those kinds of things, taking a break.  And those have been distributed year after year from 2005 forward.

We’ve also conducted a webinar training seminar for our membership, occurred last year with Mr. Welsh, actually, put him on live with our members throughout California and exposed him to about a hour and a half of questions from our members.  I will tell you that he has been very forthcoming and very direct in bolstering the same message that we have sent to our own members which is you’re going to have to take this very seriously.  And we’re going to be out in the field looking for you.  That’s been precisely our advice is that if you, as an employer, find yourself subject to a citation by the division, don’t come to us for help.  The regulations, we think, are very clear.  There’s room for interpretation, for sure, but if you take the approach that it’s better to go beyond the letter and embrace the spirit of the regulations, you’re going to be fined.  And I would say that speaking for our organization, that has been the case.  
We have, I think, set a very positive record of embracing the regulation from the outset from its development through implementation and I think the signs are positive.  It’s not to say that there’s more we that shouldn’t do.  Some of the things we heard today, I think, do deserve follow-up.  The issue of putting umbrellas over the water to keep it cool, but not providing umbrellas for employees or employees feeling like they have to buy their own, that’s not appropriate.  And that needs to be acted upon.  And that just tells me that as an employer organization we haven’t finished our job.  We’ve got to keep pounding the message to all of our members.  But I think the good example is being set by many, many employers in the industry, and that tends to lift the behavior of others.

There is a place for enforcement, absolutely.  But, I think as Mr. Welsh said, what we want to get to here is a point of declining citation numbers, because we have greater and greater evidence of accumulating of compliance.  That protects human health.  When we’re into the enforcement and citation phase, it means somebody didn’t do what we were supposed to do, and somebody was hurt or exposed to harm.  And so I think that’s the goal we’re all shooting for.

You’ve made clear that you’re concerned about the adequacy of enforcement, and I appreciate that.  I can tell you that we have received in our offices many, many emails and phone calls from members who have been visited and inspected, not only on the heat illness regs, but as part of the general sweeps that Mr. Welsh talked about.  We’ve had larger operations visited twice in the same summer.  So they are out there without a doubt.  And I think that word has gotten out, as well.  With that, I’ll stop and ____ for questions.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just a couple questions.  Are you the right person to have here, I mean, in terms of, I mean, should we have farm labor contractors here ultimately, since they’re responsible?  I mean, I just heard someone say that, you know, we’re going to hold them responsible, and I asked the question, you know, is that the ____ contractors, is that you?  I mean, are you—what are you doing—

MR. PUGLIA:  I’ll try not to take this personally.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, (LAUGHTER) I guess the question is when, that you do hire the farm labor contractor, the growers.

MR. PUGLIA:  And we have members who are FLCs, as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is it emphasized to the farm labor contractor that ultimately these regulations are in effect and that they should have pop-ups and they should have ____?  I mean, at the end of the day, you know, maybe we ought to have had, think about getting farm labor contractors here, because they’re the implementers of this in many cases.  Your thoughts on that?

MR. PUGLIA:  It’s a fair question, Senator.  I think that first of all, we do have within our membership, some of the larger FLCs in California and Arizona and Colorado.  They run throughout the—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Part of the membership, as well?

MR. PUGLIA:  Sure, not the predominant part, obviously.  You know most of our members, the growers, packers, and shippers.  But, yes, we have large FLC members within Western Growers.  But, to answer your question more directly, in my experience certainly the larger growers and shippers in the state who are members of Western Growers who utilize farm labor contractors have absolutely impressed upon them the need to comply with this regulation beyond the letter of the law, absolutely.  I have utmost confidence in that.  Does that mean that we have 100 percent compliance by all FLCs?  No.  But, I think we’re moving in the right direction.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do, you heard the statistics on violations for shade thus far, and again I assume farm labor contractors.  I mean, does that mean you folks don’t hire these guys again because they’re bad actors, or do you, you know, I mean, ultimately what’s the, what’s to prevent a farm labor contractor from simply saying, well, that was there, that was in that county, so let me move over to the next county and not provide this and simply pay the fine.  Any thoughts on how you enforce a bad actor in this industry that may have been fined or found, violated the rules or regulations? 
MR. PUGLIA:  Well, we don’t, I didn’t hear any description within those statistics of how many were FLCs versus how many were ____.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, well, are they you guys?  Are you just going to tell me they’re growers then?

MR. PUGLIA:  I don’t know.  What I’m telling you is I don’t know.  I would assert, no, of course not my members.  FLCs are licensed, obviously, and I would assume that repeated violations would expose that license to risk.  But, from a business practice standpoint, you’re not going to find a lot of growers who will keep utilizing FLCs who are being repeatedly fined for health and safety violations by the State of California.  That suggests that there will be an episode, an injury, or a death on that grower’s property whether the employee is employed by the FLC or otherwise, that brings very, very negative consequences.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the cards you mentioned, do they also include the number for workers to call in terms of OSHA?  We talked a lot about the ability to call, and there’s numbers, and there’s 24 hour—I mean, do those cards include that number?

MR. PUGLIA:  I don’t believe so.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, would that be something that would value?

MR. PUGLIA:  Yeah, I think so.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That would require you to produce hundreds and thousands of more?
MR. PUGLIA:  New ones?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re okay with that, though, right?

MR. PUGLIA:  I think we can do that, yeah.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  Thank you, thank you very much.  Do we, let’s, Mr. Gabriel, why don’t we do ____.

MR. ROY GABRIEL:  Senator, committee members, staff, my name is Roy Gabriel, representing the California Farm Bureau Federation.  We’re a general farm organization representing approximately 80 percent of the farmers and ranchers in California.  We take this heat stress issue very seriously.  We did before the regulation.  We’ve taken it much more seriously since then.  As an organization you know, we have an affiliate entity called Farm Employers Labor Service where we have, you know, bilingual staff around the state that does, you know, safety training all the time.  Certainly the heat stress issue is part of that.  We have published a number of documents that I’m going to give you copies of.  
In addition to our ag alert newsletter, which interestingly enough, the latest issue has a big story.  That goes out to 40,000 of our members, farmers preparing for long, hot summer, and details the concerns the concerns about heat stress and how to identify and deal with it.  A constituent of yours who is the chair of our health and safety committee, Carrie Whitson, had a commentary last year on that and she has been a farm labor contractor, is very sensitive to this issue.  We publish a lot of tailgate training documents that we provide to our members that are in English and in Spanish to instruct workers on a regular basis.  A number of these deal with hot weather and heat stress and acclimatization.  I’d like to share those with you.  
We have recently produced the Farm Bureau and FELS with the help of the California Grape and Tree Fruit League and the California Association of Wine Grape Growers, we produced a DVD, bilingual, 12-minute video which would be shown to workers and supervisors in the field and then training sessions.  We have, we produced a CD which has written material on safety training.  This is something that employers can use as part of their written material.  We prepared this.  Plus, with the University of California, the Farm Bureau produced a little bilingual document that workers can put in their pocket.  We didn’t purposely put our name on it, so it could get wide distribution, but we have sent out over 400,000 of these in the last year and a half to employers to give to their workers.  I’d like to share these with you.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I bet those don’t have the number.

MR. GABRIEL:  They don’t have the phone number, but they do talk about breaks, taking breaks when necessary.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when it says breaks, does that mean the five-minute standard that was negotiated, or is that—how do we explain breaks, I mean, either or?  I mean, what, how do we explain breaks?  Does that include the five-minute standard?

MR. GABRIEL:  Well, it doesn’t say specifically.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me _____.

MR. GABRIEL:  It doesn’t say specifically five minutes, but if a worker is hot, if he feels sick, we’re suggesting they take a break, however long it is necessary.  I think the regulation talks about a minimum of five minutes, but certainly, you know, we’re not going to encourage any employer to give anybody less time than that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Alright.  Thank you very much.  Good morning.

MS. ANNE KATTEN:  Good morning.  I’m Anne Katten from California Rural Legal Assistance Foundation.  And I do appreciate the efforts on, you know, by employer organizations, insurance companies, and the division.  But, I think there’s still a lot of room for improvement, particularly during heat waves when this risk is so high.  
In our field side monitoring, we are still finding many fields where the required emergency shade is not being provided and we’re very disappointed that we rarely see use of best management practices of providing adequate shade for crews during meal and rest breaks, or adjusting work schedules and reducing the pace of work when it’s hot.  We, you know, I know during the ag safe conference, a lot of those, you know, examples were raised and there were pictures and things, but we aren’t seeing it much in the field and we’re disappointed by that, because the direct heat of the sun can add 15 degrees to the heat index.  It, you know, it really does make a big difference. 

We are still finding all too many cases where the drinking water in the field is not readily accessible.  And workers do still report to us that production pressures make it impossible to follow the directive to drink water frequently, in many cases.  Some workers are bringing their own water either in some cases because none is being supplied, the water has a foul taste or smell, or it runs out by noon and isn’t being replenished in some cases.  And we also do still occasionally receive complaints of workers illegally being charged for ice added to the water.  So there’s a lot of room for improvement.

We do have to deal with cases on an ongoing basis where workers have been denied their meal and rest breaks.  And, you know, as an extension of that, and that’s their regular meal and rest breaks, you know, we find that workers are very reluctant to take extra voluntarily relief periods particularly is they’re working piece rate or machine pace seeing as you mentioned before, or other sort of incentive systems where taking that extra break will cost them money.

Many workers, we also find that many workers report they haven’t received any training in heat illness prevention, recognition or response.  It’s also our general impression that many supervisors are untrained or inadequately trained.  But, where we can go to a field side and look for water, look for shade, ask somebody to put up the shade from the back of their truck, it’s really hard for us to evaluate how well the supervisors being trained, and along those lines, we do think there’s a need for more enforcement and particularly I think that the, it is important that the, you know, a subset of the heat emergency response programs are reviewed, but that review does need to be in conjunction with evaluating whether the supervisors have been trained, because you can have a written program without really implementing it.
And it’s also very important when OSHA goes out that they evaluate whether workers are being encouraged to drink water frequently and not getting mixed signals that production is really more important, which I’m afraid they do still sometimes get.

In conjunction, I know you’re looking at other issues in heat here, and we think that during heat waves, it’s really important to have evening cooling areas including overnight shelters, because as I’m sure you know in many rural areas, farm workers don’t have access to cooling where they live and stay at night and they’re just getting worse as time goes on in a heat wave.  And we’re also very concerned that there’s no regulatory protection for workers in indoor workplaces, even though, if an indoor workplace isn’t air conditioned, it can get very, very hot and I believe one of the gentlemen here mentioned getting training in a metal shed and ___ concerned about that.
And thank you very much.  We do do training.  I didn’t think to bring our stuff.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just a couple questions.  In terms of the complaints themselves that you received, how do you convey those over to OHSA?

MS. KATTEN:  Sometimes we can get voluntary compliance at the field when we’re there.  You know, we can get someone to set up a shade structure, bring them and then come back and make sure that it’s brought or put the water closer, bring more water.  And in those instances, we do follow up to CalOSHA so they know there was a problem in case there’s a repeat violation.  In other cases we call for the workers, will call CalOSHA and because, you know, we have bilingual staff, so it’s, we think it’s easier for us to get the complaint there faster that way and call and follow up with written documentation.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what has been the responsiveness from the agency?

MS. KATTEN:  It’s sometimes very good and sometimes kind of slow.  It’s variable.  I think it’s been improving, you know, I’ve been working at this many years, and you know, we’re working on developing a better system.  I do think some other offices are awfully far apart, so I guess I, you know, sometimes that can be an issue. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the written plans, the supervisor training, what would you make of that?

MS. KATTEN:  Well, I think it’s really important to have written documentation.  I think that’s an important part of the regulation.  And that, you know, through some of the—I think it would be best to have, you know, a subset of a combination of the plan checked in the field with also evaluating whether the supervisors have been trained in implementing it at the same time.  And I don’t think, it’s not realistic with resources to do that for all plans, but for some subset.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay, is there any other comments anyone would like to make on this subject?  

UNIDENTIFIED:  (INAUDIBLE)  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great, 800 number will be there.  Wonderful.  There’s some value of having oversight hearing once in a while, so I appreciate that.  Okay, let’s excuse you, and thank you very much for your testimony.  Very much appreciate it.  Okay, let’s go turn to the last portion of the agenda which has to do with the reporting of heat related illnesses.  And obviously this is spurred by the Associated Press’s report that came out a day after our heat hearing and we would have covered it, obviously, in that hearing, but this would be that opportunity to talk a little bit about that topic.  
And so, if we could, we have Ed Smith from the Sacramento County Coroner’s Office, Dr. Roger Trent from the Department of Public Health, and Grace, of course, from the Office of Emergency Services.  Thank you very much for being here.  And maybe, go ahead and start with any of you that would like to give some general comments and what you perceived, what was your thoughts on the AP story and report and survey, and ultimately, what do you think we ought to be doing about it?

MR. ED SMITH:  Senator, I’m glad to be here today.  My name’s Ed Smith.  And I think the story was probably misinterpreted in some areas, especially in reference to the coroner and our ability to report heat related deaths.  We actively and correctly report heat related deaths.  The issue is not about the reporting process, it’s about being able to identify heat related deaths.  In the coroner’s, in our investigation efforts, it’s very difficult to establish oftentimes if a person has actually died from a heat related death or if heat is even a factor, because in, for instance, the cases that we had in July of last year, many of those, most of those cases folks have serious medical conditions and either or physical or mental conditions that may have contributed to their deaths.  
When we are called in many cases, especially these folks that are not really connected to society or if they’re loners or they’re reclusive and family members couldn’t get some of them out of their homes to be cared for.  So the issue for us is not about reporting.  We just can’t always say that this person, heat was a factor.  We had some cases last summer that the bodies have badly decomposed when we get to them.  So I noticed in the AP report, one of the doctors said we should always include heat as one of the factors in a decomposed body.  We do not do that.  We would probably not do that, because you have no way of knowing when this person actually died.  So we feel like we’re doing adequate investigations.  We are, we have the equipment necessary to check temperatures, and when we can get to deceased persons quickly, we do a core temperatures.  We take environmental temperatures and that’s how you draw some conclusions about a heat related death is not from an autopsy, it’s not from medical examination.  It’s going to be the environmental investigation that we do primarily.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who does that?  Hospitals?

MR. SMITH:  No, in our case we’re doing it on deceased person that are found at home.  Now in hospital deaths, I cannot, when a person comes to a hospital, then they would be probably questioning the person about, you know, their condition.  If they’re unconscious, then they’re asking the fire, paramedics where did you bring this person from?  We don’t necessarily have the opportunity to go to the _____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you keep saying through your testimony, we.  So, I assume, then, there is some sort of uniform coroner statewide standard for heat related death?  I mean, the AP reports seem to be saying we got into this topic because we really have no standards statewide to—

MR. SMITH:  When I say—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re saying you’re the Sacramento Coroner, so ultimately, all of your colleagues know and have we talked about the degree upon what is a state heat related illness?

MR. SMITH:  I think from an investi—when I say we, I think investigative, when we talk about death investigation there are, we’re not, there’s no uniform standard, per se, on it, on how each individual coroner is going to conduct their business.  They’re various set ups in the state.  There is sheriff coroners, there is independent coroners, there’s medical examiners and, but the basic investigative techniques that we use to identify and investigate deaths are fairly standard.  Our medical examiners are board certified.  They come from associations that talk about these issues and basically establish a general standard on how we’re going to deal with a heat related death.  So from that perspective, we’re unified, but we still conduct our business a little differently.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and the criteria, then, for a diagnosis for heat related deaths, tests that can be concluded you’re saying at some point is inconclusive to give us that type of data, or, I mean, how do we get a standardized way to look at this?

MR. SMITH:  Heat related death is primarily, from the medical perspective, our doctors are going to do, if they do an internal or full autopsy examination, then it’s an autopsy of exclusion, basically.  It’s like a drowning death.  You’re not going to find anything really during the exam that’s going to tell you for sure that heat was a factor here.  What might rule that case out would be if the doctor found that there’s actually a heart attack, I mean, you can see physical signs of heart attack.  You can see stroke.  You can see some other, we do a toxicology exam and we find this person actually overdosed on a hot day.  Those factors are going to tell us that it’s not a heat related death, not that it is.  
What we do if we come up with a negative autopsy, let’s say, or there’s moderate medical conditions that may or may not contribute to it, and the circumstances of the scene tells us the family says we tried to get mom to leave the house, because she didn’t have air conditioning.  We have the person themselves saying to their neighbor, you know, I’m really hot.  It’s really hot today.  I’m really not feeling good.  If we get that kind of circumstantial investigative evidence then we then can move towards saying this is most likely a heat-related death.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the statistics available, then, for the average annual rate of heat-related deaths is correct or incorrect then given that.  I mean, is AP stretching or are they simply using your statistics to today that the state doesn’t have a handle on the state?
MR. SMITH:  I think I would have—I talked to Mr. Thompson and gave him some numbers from Sacramento.  I think his averaging overall deaths—he took an average of from 2000 to 2006 he took an average total number of cases.  He averaged those out that we had in July, in the Julys of those years.  And then he said, well, that’s almost 100 cases more than what you had in ’06.  Well, I think he, I tried to explain to him you’re missing the point here.  Our case load is increasing every year.  In July almost in every year from 2000-2006, the caseload increased at an average of 42 cases.  So if you backed out the 42 cases from his hundred, and then took out the 13 deaths we identified heat deaths, we're back to pretty much what an average increase is for us.  So I think the number’s are a little bit skewed in that, misinterpreted by saying we got a hundred additional deaths that probably or could have been related to heat.  We have no way of knowing if any of those cases are related to heat.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What does the term excessive heat exposure mean?

MR. SMITH:  I think what that means is if a person who’s been exposed to an extreme heat and their body temperature has been elevated to a place where it creates a danger to them, for instance, when you get up past like in the hundreds, 103, 104, 105 degree and sometimes we were able to determine when we got to the scene that the person’s core temperature was up to those levels.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay and the coroners are responsible for listing the cause of death on the certificate and the death certificate allows room for listing the heat related incident as the contributing factor?  I mean, how do we account for those going through . . .

MR. SMITH:  Most of our cases we put the heat as an other condition that may have contributed to, but not directly related to the cause of death.  For instance, several of our cases from July last year, many of them, they were elderly folks who had significant cardiovascular disease, hypertension, diabetes, and other medical conditions that were the primary, what our doctor consider the primary risk factors.  So if we felt that the heat may have, if we couldn’t find any evidence, direct evidence that those conditions actually caused death, like you couldn’t find a stroke, you can’t find a heart attack, then we can say that the cardiovascular disease is the primary and we list the heat related, because it was hot in there, in their home that day and we, their body temperatures were significant, or somewhat elevated in temperature, then we can list that heat as a what we call a 112 on the death certificate which would say it’s a condition that may have contributed to, but not directly related.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just ask a question about the coroner’s perspective on being overwhelmed in many cases with heat related deaths.  I know in Fresno County the point where the coroner’s office was overwhelmed.  I mean, is that a case, Sacramento County in terms of what you saw during the massive heat wave we had?

MR. SMITH:  No, we have a fairly large coroner’s office and staffing here, because of our size, our city’s size, so I don’t think that we were overwhelmed at all.  We, these cases came in over a period of a couple weeks, more so.  It’s just another case or two a day that may have added to our caseload.  I don’t think we were overwhelmed.  We have plenty—our facility is very large.  Our storage areas are very large, so we don’t have any of those issues.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there any thought from your perspective as a professional that the heat related deaths are somehow underreported due to the fact that we didn’t want to give the impression we may not have been totally prepared for the heat wave?  Or is this just factual?

MR. SMITH:  For us it’s just factual.  We do not have any issues with not reporting heat related deaths.  We want, we’re, our job as coroners to be independent, to be focused on the investigation, to provide a good public health and or any other forensic services that we’re mandated to provide.  We have no issue or any political agenda about reporting heat related deaths.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the Governor’s statement, public statement as reported in terms of reaction to the Associated Press, the Governor, obviously, said that he’s going to order public health officials more accurately, track death tolls.  Is that, are you aware of that statement?

MR. SMITH:  I remember the statement ____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  So under what jurisdiction from your vantage point does the Governor have the ability to make that type of decision?  I mean, is this an executive order?  Is this something you read and you say the Governor said it and therefore I’m going to implement it?  I mean, what, I guess I’m trying to understand what provisions the statement is made and you as coroners implement.  Or do you just see this as a statement of, you know, generalities in terms of this particular issue?

MR. SMITH:  We are mandated.  We have laws that mandate our business just like everyone else.  And I don’t know that this particular statement, it will affect how we do business unless it becomes some legislative mandate, some new legislative mandate that tells us we have to do something different than what we’re doing now.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so you’re not going to do what the Governor said.

MR. SMITH:  (LAUGHTER)  We’re going to be—

SENATOR FLOREZ:   That’s just what you said.  Just put it bluntly.

MR. SMITH:  We’re going to investigate our cases the way we investigate our cases.  And we do a good job investigating.  In heat related deaths, we will continue to do the job that we need to do.  I’m not saying we’re not going to—we are doing what the Governor says, is what I’m trying to tell you.  We are doing it already.  And so we’re going to continue to do that and because we’re doing what we’re supposed to do.  And these heat related deaths are just part of what we do.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Very statesman-like way to put that.  And thank you for your testimony.  Very much appreciated.  Let’s, if we could, your impressions and the AP report.  What we’re doing given the Governor’s directive and maybe get some comments from you.
DR ROGER TRENT:  Thank you, Senator.  I think the AP report gave a false impression, unfortunately.  Almost every major heat wave emergency that we’ve had in the country in recent years has been followed up by two kinds of studies.  And the two kinds of studies give very different results.  They’re very complementary.  And if you look at them together you wonder how you can come up with two different numbers.  And I think that’s what happened.  The study that the Department of Public Health did that I was involved in got information from all of our colleagues in the county, all of the coroners who provided us with investigation reports and death certificates.  And we used those to come up with a description of the deaths that occurred that were coroner cases, that is, the ones that were heat related deaths and there was no other obvious cause or the person wasn’t under the care of a physician at the time.  So they became coroner’s cases.  And from those we could get a great deal of very precise information that’s useful, like a lot of them did not have air conditioning as you might have seen in the report.  They tended to be older and so on.  Very useful descriptive information.  And that was 140 cases.  

The approach that was used by AP is also used broadly, and that is to look at all of the deaths that occurred during the heat wave and then look at some referent year or years, they chose several years, and to look at the ratio to see if there is an excess.  What happens here is that many deaths that have some heat connection are not picked up as heat related deaths.  So, for example, if a person has a cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease, cerebral vascular disease, as they try to cope with heat, their body is under increased stress, because these systems are the ones that help them maintain their thermal regulation.  As that happens, you get a generalized stress on a population and people who are ill with these diseases are more likely to die.  So this shows up in an overall ratio that you get more deaths in hot weather.  We’ve known that for many, many years.  But, we don’t know which deaths they are specifically, and we can’t describe them.  So an excess heat death study which we also have in the works and we will do statewide when we have all the death certificate data.  That type of study is necessary and it gives you the overall impact. 

The other kind of study that we did that uses only coroners’ cases is for descriptive purposes to help develop policy and they should not come up with the same numbers.  In fact, the, it would be shocking if they did, then we would know something is wrong.  And I think that’s what happened.  People expected the numbers to be the same for the two studies, but they actually should not be.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  When you say people expected the numbers to be the same, then you’re saying that they will never be the same in terms of ____?

DR. TRENT:  They will never be the same, because the generalized stress of hot weather causes deaths to rise in ways that are very subtle.  People who have just a, people who are already sick are often pushed over the edge by the increased stress, but the best diagnostician in the world probably couldn’t say for sure that it was heat that made the difference.  So some of it is just ____ and can’t be seen very easily.  And that’s just the reality of this particular kind of disease.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let, what is the relationship between—now you’re in the Department of Public Health?

DR. TRENT:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And Dr. Reilly is what department?

DR. TRENT:  He is also in the Department.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess what startled me was that we had a hearing and then it was quoted in the AP story saying that we knew about the underreports.  I mean, how do I—what does that tell me?  That we knew it, but we didn’t report it?  We knew it, we’re going to fix it?  We knew it, I mean, I'm trying to understand what that statement meant from a Department point of view.  
DR. TRENT:  I can’t speak for Dr. Reilly, but from my point of view, heat deaths are always something that will show a statistical excess, but we will never be able to know exactly which persons died of excess heat, merely that heat goes up when the temperature goes up.  So perhaps that what he meant.  I think that would be a reasonable statement in any case.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so Dr. Reilly was saying heat goes up when the temperature goes up. 
DR. TRENT:  And we will never be able to count all of the individuals except in an overall statistical excess.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay, any steps by DHS in terms of underreporting?  

DR. TRENT:  Our Center for Health Statistics works very closely with coroners on—what would you call it ____?  The continuously improving of the reporting and the procedures.  So, I'm sure this will be a topic that will become more prominent as time goes on.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and what is your take of the Governor’s statement that we’ll correct this then?  Are you with the coroner that we’re just going to keep doing what we’re doing and minus the Legislature stepping in and requiring a different standard for heat deaths and requires a whole bunch of changes to death certificates and regulations.  I can imagine the many things we could do in this arena, but I mean, what is the Department’s take on the Governor’s statement?
DR. TRENT:  I can’t speak for the entire Department, but I think he is right that we always need to examine our procedures and try to improve them.  And I think we can do that.  But, whether or not there’ll be some very large change in procedures that would give us more accurate, I don’t know.  I don’t know how we would get there given the nature of this disease that kills so subtly when people are ill.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so when you say we don’t know how we’re going to get there, someone that tell the Governor that or is that something that . . .

DR. TRENT:  I can’t answer that question.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Probably read about it tomorrow.  

DR. TRENT:  Probably will.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  He’ll call you probably, or someone will.  Lastly, in terms of the future of heat related illnesses, we did ask the question last hearing and DSH’s ability to from a ground up perspective to get the word out, how people take care of themselves in this.  Is this a better process than it was from your perspective than the summer we had the heat?

DR. TRENT:  Yes, I think we learned a lot from the experiences of last year.  Our department, not I in particular, but our department did participate in the development of the overall response plan.  And I think as it’s implemented and as we fine tune it every year, that our response will get better and better.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much, ____.  Grace, thanks for joining us.  

MS. GRACE KOCH:  Hi, thank you. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just in general, as we end the hearing, now, what steps has OES taken to respond to heat-related deaths?  I think we talked about that the last meeting, and I'm just trying to again get maybe your perspective on the Governor’s recent public statements on how we are going to correct the underreporting of heat related deaths, and what does that mean from an OES perspective?

MS. KOCH:  Sure, thank you.  I think what that means, what it means to our office is that we do diligence working with our partners in the subject matter experts to discern what in fact should be acted upon and what is just an understanding of terminology which I think in this case Dr. Trent did a good job of explaining why there’s a misperception of the numbers and what they mean.  So the first step is to do the fact finding as with this hearing and determining what the facts are and then relying on our partners who contain so much expertise in this area to guide our actions and what should be acted on.  

So that’s what we’re doing right now.  With the implementation of the heat plan we continue to take a look at those steps and those actions that we’re taking and are they in fact yielding the most benefit to those that we’re trying to serve.  I think that some of the steps that are going to come out of this it will come out of every effort within a disaster are to work with and rely on the information from our subject matter experts.  
We have many venues that we reach out with the coroner’s office and associated partners.  We coordinate the coroner’s mutual aid which in reference to your comment on overwhelming coroner’s office, we have a system in place that allows for us to bring in other coroners from unimpacted areas and assist and work alongside.  That’s a long standing process.  From that we also have a mass fatality effort going on to take a look at when we’re into something that results in a large number of deaths such as Katrina or the Indian Ocean tsunami.  How we effectively deal with that, how we work with the coroner’s office, the funeral directors, the law enforcement, the utilities, everyone that has a role, so we have an effort, a very aggressive effort to bring together those subject matter experts to refine and define that process.
And I think most importantly whether it’s 143 or 500, that heat related illness and death are a very serious problem.  And we all need to work together to educate and impart information to not only the residents of the state in those impacted areas, but those services and associations that service them to advise the risks associated with exposure to heat and more importantly, the steps they can take to effectively deal with that and manage that in their own lives.

So, it is something very important to our office and the Governor’s office and we will continue to work in those veins.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Has the Governor’s or OES, actually, changed their response plan as we discussed in light of the AP report?  And the reason I ask you that is last week we talked about the response being, I want to use the quotes, “fluid, living document and evolving.”  So given it’s all of that, I mean, is this going to take in the AP report in terms of better collection of data, or not?

MS. KOCH:  I think that in two part to that, that question, I think one we definitely need to define the statistical process for reporting and to qualify the information that we, OES, get from the coroner’s office throughout the state, and to ensure that everyone knows what those numbers are and have an explanation that other contributing factors, you know, may exist. 
In regard to the changing of the plan, we are continued, we’re right now in the process of looking at our last implementation in those areas that we will probably clarify, not in maybe necessarily change, but clarify and add to to improve its value.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Let’s see.  I think that’s it.  Thank you all.  Appreciate that.  And I believe, is there any public comment?  Barry wanted to say a couple words, as well.  Barry Broad from the Teamsters and our labor representative, as well, has some comments.  And then we’ll close the hearing.

MR. BARRY BROAD:  Mr. Chair and members.  Oh, no other members.  Mr. Chair and fabulous staff people sitting before me, I just wanted to make a comment, actually, about the indoor heat issue.  It was our understanding now that CalOSHA’s not going to pursue an indoor heat regulation.  Obviously, outdoor heat strikes people and strikes people very intensibly (sic), but that doesn’t mean that people who work in indoor conditions in certain industries in particular face persistent heat questions and people’s bodies respond the same way to heat whether you’re inside or outside.  And sometimes the fact that you are inside there may be other exposures as well.  There’s heat plus humidity, there’s heat plus chemical odors.  There’s, you know, all kinds of things.  And there are certain industries across the spectrum of unions that I represent where there’s persistent heat issues whether it be commercial laundries.  I mean, I'm not sure we even have compiled a list of what they all are.  There are commercial laundries and I actually had a list of, just in your area, we have a list of people, there’s probably a thousand workers in the commercial laundry industry.  There’s restaurants, there’s meat, you know, rendering plants, there are—
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Warehouses.

MR. BROAD:  --warehouses.  There’s just a variety of these kind of work places, some of which as we’ve explored this, our folks have told us, they have heat issues persistently and they have people that pass out.  They have people that have problems.  And unlike the outdoor situations, say in agriculture where you’re in, it’s seasonal, you have different issues in that these are people working full time day after day after day, year after year after year.  So the heat spike may not be as significant.  In other words, they’re not working where it’s 120 degrees, but they may be working where it’s, the indoor heat is 90 or 95 degrees, but they’re doing that 365 days a year.  
And we think it’s critical before we have, you know, kind of a, I mean it’s almost like inevitable that if we don’t do something with this and start to educate employers about their responsibility and educate workers about how to take care of themselves that we’re going to have one of these catastrophic problems somewhere, people are going to die and then we’re going to be dealing with it in retrospect as a crisis and so we’re really hoping, very hopeful that CalOSHA would move forward on this and we’re disappointed if they’re not.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Did my relatives call you and tell you to testify, because, I mean, that’s absolutely case in some of our large warehousing and some of our meat facilities in the Valley where the temperatures can get higher than the outdoor heat in many cases when you’re moving cargo, I mean, if you’re at the target center and you’re sitting in one of those plants and you’re moving things, potato sheds, in many cases when you’re moving you’re not doing the refrigeration portion of it, but you’re actually bagging—you know, there’s a lot of those industries that, and in Ms. Richardson’s bill, the status then, is it going to move off Approps?  

MR. BROAD:  Well, we’re hopeful and we’re, I’m intending actually, later this week to sit down with Mr. Prozio with the Governor’s office and talk about the potential fate of that bill and see whether we can get some sort of an agreement that they’ll move forward.  But, at this point, the administration is opposed to the bill.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. JEREMY SMITH:  Thank you, Senator.  Jeremy Smith, here on behalf of the California Labor Federation.  Barry stole a lot of my talking points which is fine.  He said them much more eloquently than I probably could.  But, I did want to say that, you know, reiterate that we have heard from CalOSHA that they do not think there’s a need now to do a separate standard for indoor workers.  They believe they have enough on the books now to enforce, to keep indoor workplaces of employment safe for workers in terms of heat.  
We respectfully disagree.  There’s several things in the outdoor regulation that are just as germane or would be just as germane in the indoor regulation.  And everything from guarantee of breaks, if you get too hot, to access to water, and training.  What we found during the outdoor regulation meetings between business and labor is that once you’re feeling sick, it’s almost always too late.  And we need to let workers know what those things feel like and let workers know what to look for in their co-workers.  And I think one thing that you hit on earlier that I say in other committees on other bills is that CalOSHA could use some more funds perhaps to open, you know, a satellite office in Bakersfield, to have more inspectors generally, not just for heat, but all through the work they do.
And so we think it’s important argument to have.  We hope you can help us moving forward in the budget next year to maybe get some more money for CalOSHA to do not only heat related work, but also work place inspections for other workers, as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.  And I mean, and I think if you think about it’s a priority, really, about what we think is important.  And we have an unclaimed property hearing happening after the break sometime, and if we put in 80 additional FTE to help locate property, but maybe if we did 80 additional FTE for indoor and outdoor regs at OSHA, that might be as important.  So I think that’s--it can be done even in tough budget year as we have this year we can make those priority choices.  So I think it’s a very good suggestion.  And if you can work ____ our office, we definitely like to help lead that and support additional funding, no doubt.

MR. SMITH:  We’d be happy to help and those workers at CalOSHA also work with us to create regs.  So not just making sure they’re implemented, but also just creating them.  And they’ll be able to help us do that, as well.  So thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You got it.  Thank you.  

MR. EVERETT BERDAN:  Senator, good afternoon.  My name is Everett Berdan.  I am a business agent for ILWU Local 17 Warehouse Union.  And I just wanted to give some ancillary information that might be helpful to your committee.  We represent workers in the warehouse industry, also in the rice milling industry, and recycling industries, that kind of thing.  And there are cases where when the heat does spike, you know, above 90, 95 degrees, that imagine yourself having to work in an environment like when you get into your car on one of those days and the heat, before you can get the air conditioner going it is so hot that it’s almost unbearable.  
Somewhere people have to work in those kind of conditions because they’re in, you know, tilt up buildings.  They’re working close to the roof, because there’s rack and they have some of these people have engineer standards that they have to keep up with.  So not, and they do get ill over time with it, but sometimes people slow down enough because they start getting in trouble for not keeping up production.  They get fired and it’s very hard to prove that that was the reason, because the standards always say, well they countered, that they’ve put that in their standard made the rules so that could be taken care of.  But, it’s not true.  And I have actually worked in these areas in the rice industry when the rice comes in, you’re in a hot, dusty area, and with the union, you know, you can always claim safety, but if it’s non-union, you can’t.  And if there’s not a standard, then what happens is is it’s very hard to get most employers to comply with the standard, but when there’s not a standard, it’s even worse, because there’s nothing that the employee can point to.  With the union, they do have some representation.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is there anything for the union to point to in terms of the, an indoor heat reg.  I mean, I guess that’s the whole point of it.

MR. BROAD:  See, what you’re left with, and I believe what, I don’t want to speak for them, but I believe what CalOSHA’s suggesting.  There is a general industry safety order that requires employers, as a general practice, to keep their workplaces safe.  And they can cite people under that.  But, it’s not, it just applies across the board to all industries and it’s kind of the catchall provision.  And basically what CalOSHA has, it has that, and then it has a series of industry specific safety orders that tell you what to do in specific circumstances.  
And I think Mr. Berdan’s point which is well taken, is that I’m not sure a lot of the employers here know what to do.  In other words, you’re in these hot places. They’ve always been hot places.  And nobody really knows what to do.  The worker doesn’t feel bad, feels bad and doesn’t know what to do.  And so, without that kind of specific regulation which ultimately becomes the standard, you know, if you feel sick, go get water.  If you feel, you know, take an extra break.  And so on.  Without those kind of things, people just don’t know.  And I don’t think it’s doing the employers any good to come in after the fact and say, well, we’re citing you under the general industry safety order, because it doesn’t do anything except maybe deal with that particular employer at that particular moment as opposed to starting to sort of change behavior and influence behavior over a whole industry.  Which is clearly what will happen with an outdoor heat standard that over time it will become the way people do business specific to outdoor businesses, if you will, rather than sort of a generalized sense of, hey, keep it safe, but we’re not going to tell you how to do it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me just ask one more (question?) while I have you here, and you heard us talk a little bit about, I mean, maybe I think you were, I don’t know if you were all here at that time, about the old labor law regarding kind of the high rise, the specific ability for OSHA to look at written plans for, you know, that particular industry.  And that was a bit ago.  And, I mean, is this the kind of thing that labor’s looking for?  Once we get to a rule, is the ability to actually review employers’ written plans and policies regarding indoor and outdoor heat, or is the, I mean, if we’re going to rule something out and ask OSHA to do something and get more manpower for it, I mean is that just generally, is this something of value or not?
MR. BROAD:  I think you’re going on the right track there, absolutely.  That will be something of value that we would support.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, maybe want to look at that bill for the next session and see if there’s things we can build on or use as a model for indoor and outdoor regardless of what the Governor does this year.  I’m sure the Governor wouldn’t want to add the AP’s statistics in terms of deaths, heat related deaths, and we’re not sure even in AP’s story what is outdoor and indoor, which I think is an interesting issue, as well, in terms of what, how do we categorize that.  So, I do thank you all.  Appreciate for the opportunity.  Okay, given that, we will adjourn the hearing and I do appreciate--staff, thank you again.  And let’s go ahead and adjourn.
# # # # #
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